

City of Oxnard Citizen Participation Plan DRAFT

Amended May 16, 2023
CARES Act Addendum October 6, 2020

Prepared by:

City of Oxnard
Housing Department, Grants Management Division

435 South D Street, Oxnard, California, 93030
E-mail Address: grantsmanagement@oxnard.org



Table of Contents

I.	Introduction	3
II.	Purpose of the Citizen Participation Plan (CPP).....	3
III.	Encouragement of Citizen Participation	3
IV.	Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan Preparation	4
V.	Environmental Reviews	4
VI.	Citizen Participation for Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program.....	4
VII.	Assessment of Fair Housing Plan/Analysis of Impediments Revisions and Administrative Updates (AFH/AI)	5
VIII.	Access to Meetings for Persons with Disabilities and Non-English Speaking Persons	6
IX.	Public Outreach and Access	7
X.	Funding Recommendations	7
XI.	Displacement of Persons	8
XII.	Public Hearings.....	8
XIII.	Technical Assistance	9
XIV.	Amendments to the Plan	9
XV.	Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER).....	10
XVI.	Availability of Documents	11
XVII.	Citizen Participation Coordinator.....	11
XVIII.	Comments and Complaints.....	11
XIX.	Contingency Plan in the Event of an Emergency/Disaster	11
	Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) Addendum for the 2020 CARES ACT Funds, Flexibilities and Waivers.....	13
	Citizen Participation Plan (CPP)Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) Procedural History	14
	Appendix A: CARES ACT HUD Waivers	
	Applicable to Citizen Participation Plan CONSOLIDATED PLAN REQUIREMENTS.....	15

I. Introduction

Pursuant to Title 24, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 91.105, HUD entitlement cities are required to adopt a citizen participation plan. Subsection (a) requires that citizen participation plans adopted prior to August 17, 2015 need to incorporate newer provisions of the 24 CFR 91.105. The City of Oxnard originally adopted its Citizen Participation Plan on October 18, 1994. On July 25, 2000 the original document was amended. This amended Citizen Participation Plan will incorporate provisions to comply with 24 CFR 91.105.

II. Purpose of the Citizen Participation Plan (CPP)

- A. The Citizen Participation Plan sets forth the policies and procedures for citizen participation in the development of the City of Oxnard (City) Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan, any substantial amendments to these plans, the preparation of the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER), and the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH), in coordination with the Oxnard Housing Authority (OHA).
- B. The City shall provide the public with a reasonable opportunity to comment on the original Citizen Participation Plan and any amendments thereto. Amendments to the Citizen Participation Plan may be considered substantial or less than substantial as determined by the City based on the nature of the amendment and applicable HUD regulations. The 2018 amendment to the Citizen Participation Plan is substantial.

III. Encouragement of Citizen Participation

- A. A key component of the Citizen Participation Plan is that it must provide for and encourage citizen participation, especially by low- and moderate-income persons, and in particular those persons living in areas designated by the City as a revitalization area or in a slum or blighted areas and residents of predominantly low- and moderate-income neighborhoods, and where CDBG funds are proposed to be used.
- B. The City shall explore alternative public involvement techniques and quantitative ways to measure efforts that encourage citizen participation in a shared vision for change in communities and neighborhoods. Efforts must be taken to encourage the participation of all its citizens, including minorities and non-English speaking persons, and persons with disabilities.

IV. Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan Preparation

~~The Citizen Participation Plan addresses the preparation cycles for the Oxnard Consolidated Plans and Annual Action Plans.~~

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires communities receiving funds under the Community Planning and Development formula grant programs to submit a multi-year consolidated plan and annual action plan. The City of Oxnard, in partnership with the County of Ventura, Cities of Camarillo, Simi Valley, Thousand Oaks and Ventura, to create a 5-year regional consolidated plan.

The consolidated plan ~~establishes is a program and funding implementation plan combined in one document that states~~ the City of Oxnard's goals and objectives for housing and community planning and development. A community must have a consolidated plan and action plan both approved by HUD before expending funds under the grant programs Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), including activities under the Section 108 loan program, HEARTH Emergency Shelter Grants (HESG), and HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME).

The consolidated plan is ~~created typically a five-year strategic plan~~ to address the unmet public service and housing needs of low-income persons and families within the City. For each ~~of the five years consolidated plan period~~, an annual action plan is developed ~~each year in preparation for the subsequent grant year which to~~ identify specific activities, goals and funding allocations addressing the priorities established within the consolidated plan.

V. Environmental Reviews

The City maintains a written record of the environmental review undertaken for every project or program receiving federal funds from HUD. This environmental review record is available for public inspection. Certain projects require publication of specific actions or findings, which include a description of the activity, its location, and identification of any measures required to mitigate potentially significant adverse effects. Public comment periods are included in the review process as prescribed by NEPA and 24 CFR Part 58.

VI. Citizen Participation for Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program

A. In accordance with Section 108 regulations, Subpart M-Loan Guarantees, 24 CFR 570.704, the City will comply with the following pre-submission and citizen participation requirements before submitting an application for Section 108 loan guarantee assistance to HUD. These requirements will also apply to the submission of an Economic Development Initiative (EDI), and Brownfield Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) application.

1. The City will develop a proposed application to include the community development objectives and activities the City proposes to pursue and carry out with the Section 108

funds. Each activity will be described in sufficient detail, including the provision under which the project is eligible, the national objective it meets, the amount of funds expected to be used, and the activity's location to allow citizens to determine the degree to which they will be affected. The proposed application will also indicate which activities will generate program income and where citizens may obtain additional information about proposed activities. The proposed application will also include a description of the pledge of grants required under 24 CFR 570.705(b)(2).

2. The City will also publish a public notice which will include its proposed application providing citizens an opportunity to examine the application's contents and to make comments. The public notice will also advise citizens on how and where to submit comments as well as notify citizens of when and where a public hearing will be held at which they can provide further input on the proposed application. The public notice will be published at least 30 calendar days in advance of the public hearing.

3. A minimum of two (2) public hearings, held at different stages of the Consolidated Plan citizen participation process, will be held for the purpose of obtaining the views of citizens and formulating or responding to proposals and questions. At least one of these hearings will be held before submission of a Section 108 application to HUD to obtain the views of citizens on community development and housing needs. At the hearing, each activity will be described in sufficient detail including: the provision under which the project is eligible, the national objective to be met, the amount of funds expected to be used, and the activity's location so that citizens can determine the degree to which they will be affected.

4. Citizens will have up to 30 calendar days, plus the day of the public hearing, to comment.

Once the City has published the public notice and held the public hearing, the City will determine if the proposed application needs to be modified, based on comments and views received, before submitting the application to HUD. Upon completion, the final application will be made available to the public at the City Clerk's office.

VII. Assessment of Fair Housing Plan/Analysis of Impediments Revisions and Administrative Updates (AFH/AI)

A. The City shall provide community residents with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on revisions to the AFH/AI, as specified under 24 CFR 5.164.

B. The City has determined that an AFH/AI revision is necessary when:

1. The material change in circumstances affects the information on which the AFH/AI is

based;

2. The analysis, fair housing contributing factors, or the priorities and goals of the AFH/AI no longer reflect actual circumstances.
- C. The City will provide affected citizens a period of not less than 30 calendar days to make comments on a significant AFH/AI revision before it is implemented. Acceptable methods of meeting the citizen participation requirements include:
1. Publication of the availability of the substantial change(s) in a local newspaper. The publication will provide a link to a City Housing Department web page which will provide more detailed information on the significant revision(s) and how to provide comments.
 2. Publication of any proposed change shall appear in a local newspaper whose primary circulation is within the area serving the community of affected citizens;
 3. Advertisement of the availability of the proposed change on the City's website;
 4. Posting notices in public buildings within the City, which include, but are not limited to, public libraries; or,
 5. Holding meetings with citizens' advisory groups within the area affected by the significant revision.
- D. Notification to the public shall advise citizens of how and where to submit comments on the proposed changes. A summary of these comments, and a summary of comments not accepted and the reasons therefore, shall be attached to the significant revision that is submitted to HUD.

VIII. Access to Meetings for Persons with Disabilities and Non-English Speaking Persons

- A. The Citizen Participation Plan shall provide for and encourage participation by all citizens, including minorities, non-English speaking persons, and persons with mobility, visual, or hearing impairments. Persons with disabilities needing special assistance to participate in the meetings shall contact the City Clerk's Office at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure that mobility, visual or hearing impairments shall be accommodated.
- B. To accommodate non-English speaking persons, a translator shall be provided at each hearing and other translators may be made available upon request with at least three business days' notice. Requests can be made by email or telephone to the ~~to Housing~~

IX. Public Outreach and Access

- A. The consolidated plan and annual action plan development processes shall include consultation with organizations that provide community services, public and private organizations, community based organizations, faith based organizations, philanthropic organizations, businesses and developers.
- B. Commencing with consolidated plans submitted on or after January 1, 2018, consultations must occur with broadband internet service providers, organizations engaged in narrowing the digital divide, agencies that manage flood prone areas, public land or water resources, and emergency management agencies.
- C. Citizens are encouraged to participate in an advisory role in the planning, implementation, and assessment of the projects recommended under the plan(s).
- D. Notices of public hearings meetings will be sent to members of the Inter-Neighborhood Council Committee (INCC), the presidents of the public housing tenant advisory councils.

X. Funding Recommendations

- A. Prior to the adoption of the Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan by the City Council, the following information shall be made available to citizens, public agencies and other interested parties:
 - 1. Grant funds that will be available or anticipated to be available for the proposed plan (including program income).
 - 2. Range of activities that may be undertaken, including the estimated amount that will benefit persons of low- and moderate-income.
- B. A summary of the proposed Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan shall be published in at least one newspaper of countywide circulation and the announcement may also appear in at least one Spanish language newspaper of general circulation. Public service announcements may also be provided for local radio stations [or on social media](#). The summary shall describe the plans and purpose of the plan(s) and include a list of the locations where copies of the entire plan(s) may be examined. As a minimum, digital or hard copies of the proposed plan(s) shall be available for public review at the main Oxnard Public Library, City Clerk's Office and the City's Housing Department offices on 435 South D St., Oxnard, CA.
- C. The Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan and the activities to be funded shall be

made available on the City's Housing Department, Grants Management web page.

- D. The Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan shall be made available for public comments for a minimum of 30 days prior to submission to HUD. Written comments can be mailed to the Grants Manager, City of Oxnard Housing Department, 435 South D Street, Oxnard, CA 93030 or emailed to grantsmanagement@oxnard.org.

XI. Displacement of Persons

The Citizen Participation Plan must, as required by 24 CFR Part 91, Section 91.105, "set forth the jurisdiction's plans to minimize displacement of persons and to assist any persons displaced...."

The City will pursue projects which promote affordable housing, i.e., new construction and rehabilitation, which will not dislocate persons or families. (Some temporary relocation may be required for rehabilitation projects). If permanent relocation is necessary (due to the acquisition of an occupied residence planned for major reconstruction or demolition, etc.), the City will comply with the Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended, which establishes types and levels of assistance required depending upon the circumstances. Certification of compliance is included in the City of Oxnard Consolidated Plan.

The City has on file its Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan as required under Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, which pertains to any activity assisted with funding under the CDBG, ESG or HOME programs.

XII. Public Hearings

- A. The public hearings will be held at City of Oxnard Council Chambers and/or in facilities in or adjacent to low and moderate-income neighborhoods. Public hearings may be scheduled during the evening to ensure the maximum attendance by residents.
- B. The City shall hold a minimum of two public hearings per plan year (fiscal year). The purpose of the hearings is to obtain public comments, to address housing and community development needs, and to outline the development of proposed activities, to address the unmet needs of low-and moderate-income persons regarding housing, community and economic development and public services.
- C. The first hearing may be held in facilities in or adjacent to low-moderate-income neighborhoods or City Council Chambers. The purpose of the initial hearing is to obtain the public comments on housing and community development needs, including priority non-housing community development needs. ~~This meeting is mandatory for all applicants recommended for funding.~~

- D. An optional public hearing may be held to solicit public comment on activities which could be implemented to address the unmet needs identified at the first public hearing but prior to the adoption of the proposed plan by the City Council. The purpose of this hearing is to obtain citizens' comments on proposed activities and funding allocations.
- E. The final public hearing will be held to obtain citizens' comments on proposed activities and to present the Consolidated Plan and/or the Annual Action Plan to the City Council for adoption. The final hearing shall be held in the City Council Chambers. Should an in-person meeting be infeasible, the City's meeting guidelines will be followed.
- F. The hearings shall be announced in at least one newspaper of general circulation in English. The announcement will also appear in at least one Spanish language newspaper of general circulation. The hearings may also be announced as a public announcement on radio stations and/or social media, as appropriate, and announced through an informational flyer distributed/posted by Housing Authorities, public service and other organizations. At least one Spanish language radio station may be informed and the flyer may be prepared in Spanish. The announcement for the public hearings will also be e-mailed, or mailed upon request to the current list of HUD partners, subrecipients and other interested parties in the City of Oxnard.

XIII. Technical Assistance

The City shall provide, upon request, technical assistance to organizations and individuals representative of low- and moderate-income residents wishing to develop proposals for funding assistance under any of the programs covered by the Consolidated Plan. The City shall determine the level and type of assistance consistent with HUD policies and questions.

XIV. Amendments to the Plan

- A. The City shall amend its approved Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan if:
 - 1. A change in its allocation priorities; ~~or a change in the method of distribution of funds occurs;~~
 - 2. A decision to carry out an activity using funds not previously described in an action plan covered by the consolidated plan (including program income, reimbursements, repayment, recaptures, or reallocations from HUD); or
 - 3. A change in the purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries of an activity occurs.
- B. Amendments will be considered substantial changes and require official action if:

1. Grant funds are allocated to a new activity for the first time;
2. A funding increase in a current activity, or a change in the use of funding from one eligible activity to another by 10 percent, or \$200,000 or more in CDBG or HOME funding, whichever is greater, and \$50,000 in ESG funding or more;
3. A change of more than 1025 percent of an annual grant amount; amount.

~~A funded activity is cancelled during the program year.~~

C. Changes that are less than substantial represent less than the amounts listed in section XIV(B), above, and do not have a significant impact on the project's purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries. If an activity is not funded in the current year, but is the same or similar to an activity funded in another program year, and the addition is less than amounts above, and there is no significant change in the project (purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries), it is not considered a substantial change. The authorized City official with the corresponding approval amounts may approve changes that are less than substantial. Funds that are changed by ten percent must be presented in the Annual Action Plan (or Annual Action Plan amendment) staff agenda report and pre-approved by City Council.

D. Reallocation of funding among program years is not considered a substantial change, if considered less than substantial as described in the amounts above.

E. Program income will be allocated with the Annual Action Plan and with HUD requirements. If program income received is greater or less than the projected amount, approved annual amount it will be adjusted and used accordingly, and reported in both the year's CAPER and the subsequent Annual Action Plan ~~cause for an amendment or an increase to funds available in subsequent year as to how it was used or the planned use for the following year.~~

F. The City must submit a copy of each amendment to HUD. HUD allows amendments as they occur or at the end of the program year. Letters transmitting copies of amendments must be signed by the official representative of the City authorized to take such action.

G. Substantial amendments of the Consolidated Plan or Annual Action Plan will require a Public Hearing and City Council approval. Notice of public hearing will be posted on the City's Housing Department, Grants Management Division webpage and noticed in a newspaper of general circulation a minimum of 30 days prior to implementation. A public hearing will be held to obtain citizens' comments on the proposed substantial amendment and to present the substantial amendment to the City Council for adoption. Less than substantial amendments will be adjusted by city management according to their funding approval levels and may not be presented to City Council, as they are considered administrative adjustments that do not meet the fiscal threshold that requires Council approval.

XV. Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER)

A. The City will prepare the CAPER as required at the close of the grant year which shall be

made available for public comment for a minimum of 15 days prior to submission to HUD.

- B. Public comments will be ~~accepted~~ considered and responded to, as appropriate, with a summary of the comments attached to the CAPER for submittal to HUD.

XVI. Availability of Documents

- A. The Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plans, substantial amendments, CAPER and the Citizen Participation Plan will be available to the public, including the availability of materials in a form accessible to persons with disabilities, upon request.
- B. The Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plans, CAPER, the Citizen Participation Plan and the Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended, will be available for review at the City of Oxnard Housing Department, 435 South D Street, Oxnard, CA during working hours.

XVII. Citizen Participation Coordinator

- A. The Citizen Participation Coordinator shall be a member of Grants Management Division staff in the Housing Department of the City of Oxnard.
- B. The Citizen Participation Coordinator shall make past and present programmatic and funding information available to citizens during all phases of the HUD Community Planning and Development Program cycle, upon request.

XVIII. Comments and Complaints

- A. The City shall consider all verbal or written comments or views of citizens received at the public hearings in preparing the final Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plans, amendments to these plans, Section 108 Loan applications, CAPER or the Citizen Participation Plan.
- B. A summary of these comments or views shall be attached to the final Consolidated Plan, amendment to the Plan, CAPER or Citizen Participation Plan and submitted to HUD as appropriate.
- C. The City shall respond in a timely manner, within 15 days where practical, to all written complaints, grievances and requests for information about the Consolidated Plan.
- D. Written comments, complaints and/or grievances can be submitted to the Housing Director, City of Oxnard Housing Department, 435 South D Street, Oxnard, CA 93030.

XIX. Contingency Plan in the Event of an Emergency/Disaster

- A. In the event of an emergency or disaster that presents a serious and immediate threat to the health and welfare of the citizens of the City, the noticing requirements for public hearings shall be reduced to the number of ten calendar days provided by the most stringent requirement within the local, state or federal statute provided during the time of the event.
- B. Reprogramming of funds in the event of such an emergency will require approval by the ~~City Council~~ highest official, per City policies as described in the Code of Ordinances, Section 6, Emergency Organization and Functions, and Unfair Pricing. ~~When~~ emergency decisions require Council approval, the proposed reprogram of funds will be presented when Council ~~they~~ is in session, or ratification of the reallocation when the City of Council is in recess. If an accelerated emergency occurs, the most stringent approval requirement within the local, state, or federal statute will be followed.

DRAFT

CITY OF OXNARD
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN – Addendum
FOR THE 2020 CARES ACT FUNDS, FLEXIBILITIES AND WAIVERS

A. POLICY STATEMENT

1. This Citizen Participation Plan Addendum specifically addresses the special policies and guidelines in support of addressing the impacts of COVID-19 through the use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG), and HOME Investment Partnerships Act (HOME) programs, and the 2020 CARES Act Funds, termed CDBG-CV and ESG-CV.
2. All policies and processes described in the City of Oxnard (hereinafter referred to as “City”) Citizen Participation Plan, amended on July 10, 2018, is applicable to all CDBG, ESG and HOME funding sources unless specified in this Addendum.
3. All policies and processes specified in this Addendum are applicable through the adoption date of this Addendum and will expire upon the date specified for the CARES Act of 2020 funding and waivers, by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) department.

B. DEFINITIONS

1. CARES Act Flexibilities and Waivers – HUD Secretary issued statutory and regulatory waivers/alternative requirements for CDBG-CV, ESG-CV and some CDBG, HOME and ESG funds when necessary to expedite or facilitate the use of grant funds to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus. Prohibits waivers/alternative requirements related to fair housing, nondiscrimination, labor standards, and the environment. (see Appendix A: CARES ACT HUD Waivers Applicable to Citizen Participation Plan)
2. CDBG-CV – Community Development Block Grant funding specifically allocated for the impacts related to COVID-19
3. ESG-CV – Emergency Solutions Grant funding specifically allocated for the impacts related to COVID-19

C. PLANNING PROCESS FOR CONSOLIDATED PLAN DOCUMENTS

1. Public Review and Comment – Documents (Plans) created for the CARES Act of 2020 funds and waivers will be made available to the public for no less than 5 calendar days. Written comments will be accepted during the public comment period. Summaries of comments will be attached to documents requiring public reviews and input.

D. MEETINGS AND HEARINGS

1. During locally, state, or federally declared Stay-At-Home orders, public meetings may occur virtually and will publicly post meeting dates, times, and instructions in advance of the meetings.

Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) Procedural History

1. Originally adopted CPP by City Council on October 18, 1994
2. Modifications to CPP adopted by City Council on July 25, 2000
3. Amended CPP adopted by City Council on July 10, 2018
4. CARES Act Addendum approved by City Council on October 6, 2020
5. [Amended CPP adopted by City Council on May 16, 2023 \(Pending\)](#)

DRAFT

DRAFT

Appendix A
CARES ACT
HUD Waivers
Applicable to Citizen Participation
Plan

CARES ACT HUD Waivers Applicable to Citizen Participation Plan

CONSOLIDATED PLAN REQUIREMENTS

1. Citizen Participation Public Comment Period for Consolidated Plan

Amendment Requirement: 30-day Public Comment Period.

Citations: 24 CFR 91.105(c)(2) and (k), 24 CFR 91.115(c)(2) and (i) and 24 CFR 91.401

Explanation: A CPD grantee may amend an approved consolidated plan in accordance with 24 CFR 91.505. Substantial amendments to the consolidated plan are subject to the citizen participation process in the grantee's citizen participation plan. The citizen participation plan must provide citizens with 30 days to comment on substantial amendments.

Justification: Given the need to expedite actions to respond to COVID-19, HUD waives 24 CFR 91.105(c)(2) and (k), 91.115(c)(2) and (i) as specified below, in order to balance the need to respond quickly to the growing spread and effects of COVID-19 with the statutory requirement to provide reasonable notice and opportunity for citizens to comment on substantial amendments concerning the proposed uses of CDBG, HOME, HTF, HOPWA or ESG funds.

Applicability: This 30-day minimum for the required public comment period is waived for substantial amendments, provided that no less than 5 days are provided for public comments on each substantial amendment. The waiver is available through the end of the recipient's 2020 program year. Any recipient wishing to undertake further amendments to prior year plans following the 2020 program year can do so during the development of its FY 2021 Annual Action Plan.

2. Citizen Participation Reasonable Notice and Opportunity to

Comment Requirement: Reasonable Notice and Opportunity to Comment.

Citations: 24 CFR 91.105(c)(2) and (k), 24 CFR 91.115(c)(2) and (i) and 24 CFR 91.401

Explanation: As noted above, the regulations at 24 CFR 91.105 (for local governments) and 91.115 (for States) set forth the citizen participation plan requirements for recipients. For substantial

amendments to the consolidated plan, the regulations require the recipient to follow its citizen participation plan to provide citizens with reasonable notice and opportunity to comment. The citizen participation plan must state how reasonable notice and opportunity to comment will be given.

Justification: HUD recognizes the efforts to contain COVID-19 require limiting public gatherings, such as those often used to obtain citizen participation, and that there is a need to respond quickly to the growing spread and effects of COVID-19. Therefore, HUD waives 24 CFR 91.105(c)(2) and (k), 24 CFR 91.115(c)(2) and (i) and 24 CFR 91.401 as specified below to allow these grantees to determine what constitutes reasonable notice and opportunity to comment given their circumstances.

Applicability: This authority is in effect through the end of the 2020 program year.

DRAFT